City of PCB City Hall

. 17007 PCB
Panama City Beach Pavikwiy
PCB, FL. 32413
P: (850) 233-5100
F: (850) 233-5108

CITY OF PANAMA CITY BEACH R S
PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES
November 13, 2024
MINUTES TO THE REGULAR MEETING

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Wakstein at 1:00 p.m. and Ms. Deese was
asked to call the roll. Members present were Mr. Jones, Mr. Coleman, Mr. Morehouse, Mr.
Wittstruck, Mr. Bishop, and Chairman Wakstein. Mr. Painter was absent. Mr. Bishop led
the Pledge of Allegiance.

ITEM NO. 3 Approval of the October 9, 2024, Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Chairman Wakstein asked if there were any comments or corrections to the meeting

minutes. Mr. Coleman made a motion to approve. It was seconded by Mr. Morehouse. Ms.
Deese called the roll.

Mr. Jones  Yes Mr. Coleman Yes Mr. Morehouse Yes
Mr. Bishop Yes Mr. Wittstruck Yes Chairman Wakstein Yes
ITEM NO. 4 Public Comments — Non-Agenda Items

There were no public comments.

ITEM NO. 5 Mackin Family Trust, Traton of Florida, LLC, and acting agent
Raymond Greer are requesting approval for a Master Plan for the
Clara Street PUD (formerly Oak Grove PUD). The subject property
is approximately 119.98 acres located east of Colony Club and
Trieste subdivisions at the northerly extension of Clara Avenue
(parcels 32733-000-000, 32733-000-010, and 33996-000-000).

Chairman Wakstein introduced the item and read aloud the proceedings for a quasi-
judicial hearing. All participants identified as affected parties were sworn in for testimony.
Ms. Deese acknowledged that all the requirements of the application notices were
satisfied. Ms. Deese was asked to call Jennings Act.

Mr. Jones had nothing to disclose. Mr. Coleman had nothing to disclose. Mr.
Morehouse had nothing to disclose. Mr. Bishop had nothing to disclose. Mr.
Wittstruck had nothing to disclose. Chairman Wakstein spoke with counsel.

The application and all public comments received were added to the record.

Mr. Ray Greer, acting agent for the applicant presented the application. A brief history and
description of the location and size of the property was given. Mr. Greer described the
proposed development as 119 acres comprised of community parks, open space
silviculture, and single family attached and detached homes. The design includes a buffer
between single family uses as well as a stormwater plan for the development. The marsh
and tributary area will be left as open space. The Clara Avenue right of way is owned by
Bay County and proposed to extend through the development to the bay. The client
desires to make an area alongside the bay a park with public access. Mr. Greer noted that
there has been property access conversation with Mr. Charles Bodiford and his partner

Page 1 of 3
Minutes of the Planning Board

November 13, 2024



who jointly own a land locked property to the west of the proposed development. He
described the geographic location of Mr. Bodiford’s property.

Mr. Morehouse inquired why the overflow parking requirement was reduced.

Mr. Greer responded that the single detached homes incorporate the overflow parking into
the development. He explained the plan to bring the road to the roundabout and noted the
existing light at Clara Avenue and Panama City Beach Parkway.

Mr. Wittstruck asked for clarification on the four (4) homes per acre density calculation.

Mr. Greer stated the density for the development is a calculation based on the acreage of
the overall development.

Mr. Wittstruck voiced concern about possible tree burning when the land is cleared.

Mr. Leonard responded that the division of state forestry will regulate any burning.

Ms. Chester stated that there will be no short-term rentals. She stated that the
development is compatible to the adjacent neighborhoods. Those in attendance of the
community meeting were in favor of the project. The proposed setbacks are between the

current setbacks of the R-1c and R-1b zoning districts.

Mr. Coleman asked if any previous Planned Unit Developments (PUDs) had approved
deviations from setbacks.

Ms. Chester answered yes.
Mr. Wakstein asked staff for clarification on the parking requirement.

Ms. Chester responded that the parking requirement is based on 5% of the residential
area, not the total property.

Chairman Wakstein read the definition of adversely affected party and called for
comments at this time.

Mr. Charles Bodiford, owner of parcel 32734-000-000 adjacent to the proposed project
said he doesn’t have assurance that the developer will continue the access discussion.

Ms. Myers stated that Mr. Bodiford’s issue of access is not for the Planning Board.
Chairman Wakstein called for public comment and there was none. He called for rebuttal.

Mr. Greer stated he had a call with Mr. Bodiford’s attorney and partner the week prior to
discuss access.

Chairman Wakstein concluded the evidentiary portion of the meeting and opened Board
deliberation.

Mr. Bishop felt the proposed development checked the boxes better than previous master
plans for the property.

Mr. Wittstruck liked project but had setback concerns.

Mr. Coleman made a motion to approve the proposed Master Plan for the Clara Avenue
PUD. It was seconded by Mr. Morehouse.

Mr. Jones Yes Mr. Coleman Yes Mr. Morehouse Yes

Mr. Bishop Yes Mr. Wittstruck Yes Chairman Wakstein Yes

The motion to approve passed with a vote of (6-0).

Page 2 of 3
Minutes of the Planning Board

November 13, 2024



ITEM NO. 6 Comprehensive Plan Population Update

Mr. Leonard presented the item as a required update by the state of Florida. The state
asks that all local governments to update their population projections for 10 and 20 years
as well as update to reflect any changes in state law. The last major update was in 2021,
so this is largely a housekeeping update.

Mr. Coleman inquired if changes to the future land use was through annexation and if it
impacts Bay County.

Mr. Leonard responded that Bay County has the same required analysis. One may show
an increase while the other shows a decrease.

Mr. Morehouse made a motion to approve the Comprehensive Plan population update. It
was seconded by Mr. Wittstruck.
Mr. Jones  Yes Mr. Coleman Yes Mr. Morehouse Yes

Mr. Bishop Yes Mr. Wittstruck Yes Chairman Wakstein Yes

The motion to approve passed with a vote of (6-0).

ITEM NO. Code Enforcement Update

Mr. Smith provided an update for mid-September through mid-October. He noted that
each case may have multiple violations. The Division’s neighborhood enforcement efforts
were in response to grass, detrimental conditions, window signs, and banners.
Enforcement of City ordinances on the beach included dogs on the beach, holes, and
double red flag violations.

Mr. Wittstruck questioned the reason for the increase in cases from the previous year.

Mr. Smith responded that the Division has taken a more visual and proactive approach as
well as an additional Code Enforcement Officer was hired.

The meeting adjourned at 1:37 p.m.

5 s
T4 ‘_j}jﬁr g L
DATED this,_ | ¢ dayof _ | 0/ %0y , 2024,
vl / » aml = )
/ r - /
7 7
A A = | 74 L '(ivl" J ]

Jo's’h;Wéks/tein, Chairman

,/

ATTEST:
 Mand s o

Mellssa Deese, Secretary

_ Page 3 of 3
Minutes of the Planning Board

November 13, 2024



